

CONVENTION ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE IN ENDANGERED SPECIES  
OF WILD FAUNA AND FLORA



Sixteenth meeting of the Conference of the Parties  
Bangkok (Thailand), 3-14 March 2013

**Committee I**

Intergovernmental Science-Policy Platform on Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services

DRAFT DECISIONS OF THE CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES

*This document has been prepared by the working group on IPBES, on the basis of document CoP16 Doc. 17 (Rev. 1), after discussion in the first session of Committee I. Deletions proposed by the working group are ~~crossed out~~ and proposed new text is underlined.*

**Intergovernmental Science-Policy Platform  
on Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services (IPBES)**

***Directed to the Parties***

- 16.xx a) Parties should consider promoting actions to reinforce linkages between IPBES and CITES and to strengthen the science-policy interface at the national and international levels, including through the governing body of IPBES, as appropriate; and
- b) Bearing in mind that IPBES consolidation remains in process, Parties are invited to provide inputs to the Secretariat in order to provide timely responses to IPBES in regard to CITES involvement

***Directed to the Standing Committee***

- 16.xx At its 64th meeting, the Standing Committee shall establish a Working Group on IPBES, including the Chairs of the Animals and Plants Committees and the Secretariat, to assist its efforts to ensure that:
- a) There is a two-way relationship between CITES and IPBES in which CITES is a user or beneficiary of IPBES as well as a contributor to IPBES;
- b) ~~A mechanism is developed for facilitating communication between CITES and IPBES for the conveyance of government requests to IPBES from the Conference of the Parties or the Standing Committee~~ is effective;
- c) ~~The identification of capacity-building needs and related financing by~~ development of the work programme for IPBES helps takes into account the needs of national scientific and management authorities to foster the use of applied science for the implementation of CITES, including the making of non-detriment and legal acquisition findings, and related trade decisions; and
- d) ~~A draft Resolution is developed which specifically recognizes the relationship between CITES and IPBES.~~
- d) CITES requests and input to intersessional and regular work undertaken by IPBES are provided in accordance with relevant timelines, particularly the deadline of 5 May 2013 for requests to and suggestions for the initial IPBES work programme.

The intersessional working group shall report to the Standing Committee at its 65th and 66th meetings.

Any inputs to IPBES developed by the intersessional working group shall, with the endorsement of the Chair of the Standing Committee after consultation with the Committee, be conveyed to IPBES by the Secretariat on behalf of the Standing Committee.

The Standing Committee shall consider at its 66th meeting the need for drafting a Resolution which specifically recognizes the relationship between CITES and IPBES.

The Standing Committee shall report at the 17th meeting of the Conference of the Parties on the results of this work.

***Directed to the Animals and Plants Committees***

16.xx The Chairs of the Animals and Plants Committees shall:

- a) assist the Standing Committee with the implementation of Decision 16.xx;
- ~~a~~b) subject to external funds, participate as observers in the IPBES Multidisciplinary Expert Panel and thereby reinforce linkages between the MEP and the CITES scientific committees; and
- ~~b~~c) report regularly to the Standing Committee on their activities under paragraph a) above; ~~and~~
- ~~e~~) ~~continue their cooperation with the Chairs of the Scientific Advisory Bodies of Biodiversity-related Conventions and the secretariats of the conventions, in relation to IPBES.~~

***Directed to the Secretariat***

16.xx The Secretariat shall:

- a) Under the policy guidance provided by the Conference of the Parties, and in cooperation with the Standing Committee intersessional Working Group on IPBES established pursuant to Decision 16.xx, continue to track and contribute to the intersessional and regular work of IPBES bodies;
- ~~a~~b) subject to external funds, participate as an observer in the governing body of IPBES and thereby reinforce linkages between that body and the governing bodies of CITES;
- ~~b~~c) explore with other biodiversity-related conventions ~~the possible means for development of a facilitating cooperative on Memorandum of Understanding between the Liaison Group of Biodiversity-related Conventions (BLG) and the IPBES Secretariat, once the latter is established;~~
- ~~e~~d) ~~request~~ seek external funding ~~from UNEP~~ to support attendance at IPBES meetings by the Chairs of the Animals and Plants Committees and the Secretariat; and
- ~~e~~) ~~continue its cooperation with the Chairs of the Scientific Advisory Bodies of Biodiversity-related Conventions and the secretariats of the conventions, in relation to IPBES; and~~
- e) report regularly to the Standing Committee, as well as to the 17th meeting of the Conference of the Parties, on the results of this work.

*[Clean version]*

**Intergovernmental Science-Policy Platform  
on Biodiversity and Ecosystem Services (IPBES)**

***Directed to the Parties***

16.xx

- a) Parties should consider promoting actions to reinforce linkages between IPBES and CITES and to strengthen the science-policy interface at the national and international levels, including through the governing body of IPBES, as appropriate; and
- b) Bearing in mind that IPBES consolidation remains in process, Parties are invited to provide inputs to the Secretariat in order to provide timely responses to IPBES in regard to CITES involvement

***Directed to the Standing Committee***

16.xx At its 64th meeting, the Standing Committee shall establish an intersessional Working Group on IPBES, including the Chairs of the Animals and Plants Committees and the Secretariat, to assist its efforts to ensure that:

- a) There is a two-way relationship between CITES and IPBES in which CITES is a user or beneficiary of IPBES as well as a contributor to IPBES;
- b) Communication between CITES and IPBES for the conveyance of government requests to IPBES is effective;
- c) The development of the work programme of IPBES takes into account the needs of national scientific and management authorities to foster the use of applied science for the implementation of CITES, including the making of non-detriment and legal acquisition findings, and related trade decisions; and
- d) CITES requests and input to intersessional and regular work undertaken by IPBES are provided in accordance with relevant timelines, particularly the deadline of 5 May 2013 for requests to and suggestions for the initial IPBES work programme;
- e) The intersessional working group shall report to the Standing Committee at its 65th and 66th meetings.

Any inputs to IPBES developed by the intersessional working group shall, with the endorsement of the Chair of the Standing Committee after consultation with the Committee, be conveyed by the Secretariat to IPBES on behalf of the Standing Committee.

The Standing Committee shall consider at its 66th meeting the need for drafting a Resolution which specifically recognizes the relationship between CITES and IPBES.

The Standing Committee shall report at the 17th meeting of the Conference of the Parties on the results of this work.

***Directed to the Animals and Plants Committees***

16.xx The Chairs of the Animals and Plants Committees shall:

- a) assist the Standing Committee with the implementation of Decision 16.xx;
- b) subject to external funds, participate as observers in the IPBES Multidisciplinary Expert Panel and thereby reinforce linkages between the MEP and the CITES scientific committees; and
- c) report regularly to the Standing Committee on their activities under paragraph a) above.

***Directed to the Secretariat***

16.xx The Secretariat shall:

Under the policy guidance provided by the Conference of the Parties, and in cooperation with the Standing Committee intersessional Working Group on IPBES established pursuant to Decision 16.xx, continue to track and contribute to the intersessional and regular work of IPBES bodies;

- a) subject to external funds, participate as an observer in the governing body of IPBES and thereby reinforce linkages between that body and the governing bodies of CITES;
- b) explore with other biodiversity-related conventions possible means for facilitating cooperation between the Liaison Group of Biodiversity-related Conventions (BLG) and the IPBES Secretariat, once the latter is established;
- c) seek external funding to support attendance at IPBES meetings by the Chairs of the Animals and Plants Committees and the Secretariat; and
- d) report regularly to the Standing Committee, as well as to the 17th meeting of the Conference of the Parties, on the results of this work.